Puckett & Faraj, PC


SUBJECT:  PROFFER OF FALSIFICATION OF INVESTIGATIVE WORK INVOLVING FORMER OPM CONTRACT INVESTIGATOR RAMON S. DAVILA 
Ref:  (a)  US OPM Memorandum dated March 22, 2010
(b)  OPM Investigators Handbook, version 5 dated 2004 (DRAFT)

(c)  OPM Office of the Inspector General Office of Audits Final Audit Report (Report No. 4A-IS-00-08-014)
1. The following is a proffer in regards to the above referenced Memorandum containing alleged falsification recovery project reports of the subject OPM contract investigator – Mr. Ramon S. Davila.
2. Mr. Davila signed the OPM Investigations Contract with ManTech/MSM on April 24, 2006.  After attending the OPM Contract Investigators training (two weeks classroom and two weeks mentorship), his OPM credentials were issued to him June 19, 2006.  Mr. Davila contracted with [then] ManTech/MSM Security Services (currently MSM), Systems Application and Technologies (SA-Tech), Inc. and US Investigations Services (USIS).  
3. Reference (a) cites that on August 9, 2007, Mr. Davila was “removed from the OPM Contract, after it was confirmed that he had falsified investigative case work.”  This is not true.  Correspondence from USIS reflects that OPM “suspended” Mr. Davila on August 10, 2007 “under direction from the OPM, suspended you Mr. Davila from further investigation due to deficient investigative reports.”  Note that “deficient reporting” does NOT equate to felonious criminal activity as cited under Title 18, United States code, Section 1001.       
Mr. Davila was contacted multiple times by case reviewers to discuss his Reports of Investigation (ROIs) to ensure completeness and address any issues that might arise as are all Investigators.  OPM vendors (such as MSM, SA-Tech, and USIS) are required to conduct quality assurance programs on their prospective contract investigators. In the 12 months that Mr. Davila conducted contracted OPM investigations, never was Mr. Davila contacted for a quality assurance (QA) issue involving “making material false statements and concealing material information from Governmental Departments or Agencies” in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1001.  
4. By the OPM’s own historical experiences of which is publicized in Reference (b) - the [then] OPM Investigators Handbook - “Occasionally, a source might furnish unfavorable information but later provide contradictory information or deny making the original statements.”  Because of these occurrences, the OPM Investigator’s Handbook mandates that “The Investigator's written notes become part of the temporary case file and, as such, are maintained should it become necessary to reconstruct a report. In addition, supervisors review notes as part of the quality control and re-interview process.” 

5. Mr. Davila submitted his Investigator’s Notes as required by the Vendors (Contract Company) and OPM Investigators Handbook.  The OPM’s current contract mandates Vendors return all Investigators’ Notes within two weeks of the case completion; further, OPM is to retain such notes for a period of three years.  
Contained in Reference (c), it was concluded that the OPM - Federal Investigation Service Division (FISD) was not maintaining Investigators’ Notes in all cases for the required three year period.  
6. The current accusations (over three years old) against Mr. Davila are felonious that, by OPM’s own regulations, cannot produce evidence of guilt beyond a reasonable doubt nor do these same regulations afford Mr. Davila a defense as provided under his US Constitutional rights. 
7. However, Mr. Davila does maintain records (for business, financial, and tax purposes) that might prove his reports reflect interviews conducted with the individuals as indicated; he went to the establishments/residences and meeting places reflected in the reports; and in fact the reports’ information is correct and factual.  
8. Finally, it is Mr. Davila’s prayer that the US Attorney resolves this matter with prejudice in the light that Mr. Davila can not be found guilty of violating Title 18, US Code, Section 1001 beyond a reasonable doubt based solely on “he-said / she-said” evidence.  
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